
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

**** COMMISSIONER’S MEETING ROOM, GROUND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 

April 1, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

1. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES      

DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     

DISTRICT 4 – ASHER GRAY     

DISTRICT 5 - STEVEN LEDFORD, VICE-CHAIR     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 5 

         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 

         

 V.      Consent Agenda –  

1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• Work Session Minutes- February 26, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- March 6, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- March 13, 2024 

 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     70574- 70784 

 

VI.   Public Hearings with Business Action 

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 

ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 

Commissioners.  Following the public hearing. The Board of Commissioners will act on each item 

presented below.  

 

Bu 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 

(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 

Commissioners.  

 

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 

for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  

be courteous of the 3-minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

IX. County Commissioner Items & Updates 

 

X.   Regular Agenda  

 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



XIII. Executive Session 

 

 

Business Items: 

1. Appointment to Development Authority of Jasper County Board 

2. Appointment to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board 

3. Appointment to Recreation Board 

4. Appointment to Public Facilities Authority Board 

5. Capital Expenditure Request – RA-400 Truck Mounted Road Pothole Patcher 

6. Request for Senior Center Improvements – Parking Lot Surface, Stormwater Drainage and Back Lot 

Grade 

7. 2024 LMIG - Wild Rd Bids 

8. Sands Drive Park Pavilion Bids 

9. GDOT Local Road Assistance Administration Funds 

10. Support Letter for Northeast Georgia Regional Commission’s Request for FY 2025 Congressional 

Funding 

11. Free C&D Material Tipping for Jasper County Residents - Discussion 

12. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  

§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 

and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 

in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

 

XIV. Adjournment  

 

 

 

 

  



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  April 1, 2024 

 

Subject:  Approval of Minutes 

 

Summary: 

 

 

Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 

• Work Session February 26, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- March 4, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- March 13, 2024 

 

Background: 

 

 

Cost:  $0 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve minutes for:  

 

• Work Session February 26, 2024 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- March 4, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- March 13, 2024 

 

 

 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Work Session Minutes: February 26, 2024  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

February 26, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry -Chairman, Steven Ledford -Vice Chairman; Don Jernigan, Sheila Jones, 

and Asher Gray. 

Staff Present:  Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, County Clerk, Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting 

Officer, Doug Attaway, P &Z Director 

Work Session: 

1. Landfill Operations: 

Chairman Henry opened the floor to residents to voice their opinions about privatizing the landfill. Residents 

were given a chance to speak for 5 minutes and come back after others had their chance.  

 

Many residents spoke. All spoke in opposition and gave reasons of why the landfill should remain under the 

control of Jasper County Board of Commissioners.  

 

 

2. Short Term Rentals Ordinance Discussion: 

Due to the time Chairman Henry stated that we will schedule another Work Session to discuss short-term 

rentals.  

The Work Session was adjourned at 7:42 p.m.  

 

_________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sheila Belcher, Clerk 



Jasper County Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2023-Regular Meeting 
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

March 4, 2024 

       Regular Meeting Minutes 

         6:00 P.M. 

 

Chairman Bruce Henry called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 

Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman; Steven Ledford, Vice Chair; Don Jernigan; 

Sheila Jones and Asher Gray  

 

Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Clerk- Administrative Services Director, 

Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting Officer, Doug Attaway- Planning and Zoning Director,  

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: Commissioner Gray, District 4 

 

Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the agenda as presented.  

Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Consent Agenda:  

Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the following minutes  

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes February 5, 2024 

  

Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.      

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Check #s 70346-70573. Commissioner Jones 

seconded the motion, passed unanimously. 

 

Public Hearings: None 

 

Citizen Comments:  

• David Thompson – Gave handouts and spoke on the traffic around the square. The 

landfill will add to the traffic if it is outsourced. Adding a lane to the square will not 

help the flow of traffic when tractor trailers are still using the square. Used Eatonton 

as an example. 

• Mary Patrick – Spoke against outsourcing the landfill. “What if company running 

it goes out of business. Remember all the thriving companies that crashed in 2008. 

A 30-year contract is a bad idea. Keep landfill in house and open 5 days a week and 

consider allowing non-resident dumping pickup truck size loads.” 

•  John Henderson – Running for Chief Magistrate give his history and qualifications 

and asked for citizen support. 

• Gail Harrell – City Council member spoke on the traffic on the square. Wants the 

city and the county to work together to resolve issue. She said changes will require 

city approval as they are concerning city streets. 

• Mark Logan – Spoke against outsourcing the landfill as it will cause damage to the 

county roads costing the county more money in repairs and road maintenance. 

Outsourcing will also add to traffic issues. He said open landfill 5 days a week in 

house and hope to break even.  



Jasper County Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2023-Regular Meeting 
 

•  

 

•  

 

• 

Chris Lawrence – Spoke against outsourcing the landfill saying it will become a   
trash mountain. He used Athens as an example saying they promised it would not   
smell  as  a  C&D  landfill  but  it  smells  horrible  and  so  will  ours.  He  said  he  is   
concerned about chemicals leaking in the water sources. Stating the EPA is already   
investigating our landfill. 
Jason Bunn – Spoke against outsourcing the landfill. He said that it will be the first 

thing people see when they drive into town. He also said it would become a trash   
mountain. He wants the landfill to be ran in house. 
Amy Gude -Spoke against the landfill being outsourced. She said she would like to 

see it ran in house and open up jobs for county residents. She said she does not want   
the landfill opened up as a dumping ground for other counties. Mrs. Gude said she   
would like to see all Officials work together in a civil manner to get things done to   
benefit all citizens.  

 

County Commissioner's Items  

 
 

 

Commissioner Jernigan- Commissioner Jernigan asked County Manager Mike Benton to 
give update on any new information about the county employee pension plan he has been 
working on when he gives his County Manager updates.  Commissioner Jernigan mentioned 
that the county will be getting a new fire truck delivered in a few months. He stated that they 
may want to start looking at ordering  a new ambulance now. It takes about a year to get the 
ambulances in once ordered. Commissioner  Jernigan also spoke in favor of keeping the 
landfill in house and opening five days a week he said  he would like to see the county break 
even or maybe make a little bit of money. 
 
 

 

Commissioner Jones- None 

 

 

Commissioner Ledford- Commissioner Ledford said he has received several calls about the  

 

 

  

county dirt roads and the condition they are in. He said the are now washed away back to 
nothing but dirt. He wants to get a cost for hiring a sub-contractor to repair and maintain the   
dirt roads. He said that it should be included in the FEMA funding. County Manager Mike  
Benton said that they have a July time frame for the FEMA funding but he can get a cost 
possibly by May. 
Commissioner Gray- Commissioner Gray said he would like to see the county website 
updated to show a list of all the boards and authorities with members listed and their term  
expiration date. He also wants meetings and other county events placed on the calendar. 
He said doing so will make it easier for residents to find information regarding boards and  
meetings. Commissioner Gary also asked Mike to add 911 EMA and county employee 
retirement plan to his County Manager update.   
 

Commissioner Henry-  None  

 
Business Items: 

Item 1: Appointment to Board of Assessors:  Larry Smith seeking reappointment. 

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to reappoint Larry Smith to the Board of Assessors 

Commissioner Ledford seconded motion, motion passed unanimously. 

 

Item 2: Appointment to Planning and Zoning Board:  Julie Bennett seeking reappointment. 

Mary Patrick seeking appointment and Bobby Jacobs seeking appointment but did not show up 



Jasper County Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2023-Regular Meeting 
 

for the meeting.  Commissioner Ledford asked Mary Patrick if she was seeking reappointment to 

the Variance Board. Mary Patrick responded “no not this evening.”  

 

  

 

Commissioner Gray motioned to appoint Julie Bennet and Mary Patrick, Commissioner Ledford  
seconded motion.  Chairman Henry requested appointing separately. Commissioner Gray said  
they had a motion and a second motion passed (with a vote in favor from Commissioner   
Jernigan. Commissioner Henry commented that it wasn’t that he was against the motion he just    
thinks they should have been done separately.  

 

Item 3: Appointment to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board:   Chairman Henry requested a 

motion to table as applicant was unable to attend. Commissioner Jernigan Motioned to table the 

appointment, Commissioner Ledford seconded, passed unanimously. 

 

Item 4: Appointment to Recreation Board:  Chairman requested a motion to table as applicant 

did not show up. Commissioner Ledford motioned to table, Commissioner Jernigan seconded, 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

Item 5: Appointment to Public Facilities Authority Board:   Commissioner Jernigan seeking 

reappointment, Howard Fore, James Thiele, and William Nash seeking reappointment.  

 

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to reappoint James Thiele to the Public Facilities Authority 

Board, Commissioner Gray seconded, passed unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to reappoint William Nash to the Public Facilities Authority 

Board, Commissioner Jernigan seconded, motion passed unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to table reappointment of Howard Fore as he was unable to 

attend the meeting. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Gray, passed unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Ledford Motioned to reappoint Commissioner Jernigan to the Public Facilities 

Authority Board, Commissioner Gray seconded, motion passed unanimously.   
 

Item 6: Appointment of Voting Delegate for Consideration of Three Statewide Georgia 

Opioid Settlement Advisory Commission Members and Regional Advisory Council 

Members.   Captain Billy Bryant seeking appointment for Voting Delegate. Captain Bryant was 

recommended by Sheriff Donnie Pope. He has nineteen years in law enforcement and over ten 

years in narcotics.   

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to appoint Captain Billy Bryant for Voting Delegate, 

Commissioner Gray seconded. Motion passed unanimously.   

 

Item 7: Discuss Comments from the February 26, 2024 Public Hearing on Landfill 

Operations:   Chairman Henry spoke about landfill meeting. He said citizen do not want to 

privatize the landfill. Commissioners all agree it should not be privatized. After a long 

conversation Chairman Henry said they would schedule a work session.  
 

   

 

  

Item 8: Bear Creek Marina Alcohol License Renewal: Mr. Wright Owner of Bear Creek 
Marina requested to have his license fees waived for 2024. Fees were paid in 2023 but his
 business was a total loss due to tornado damage. He never opened in 2023.  



Jasper County Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 4, 2023-Regular Meeting 
 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve alcohol license. Commissioner Gray seconded, 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Gray motioned to waive alcohol license fees for 2024. Commissioner Ledford 

seconded motion, motion passed four to one. Commissioner Jernigan opposed. 

 

Item 9: Downtown Monticello Traffic Pattern:  After a discussion and suggestions of how to 

do to reduce traffic and delays on the square City Council member Gail Harrell again stated it 

most be approved by the city. Mrs. Harrell stated the city wishes to work with the country to 

resolve the issue. She said that the City is trying to get GDOT involved again.  Chairman Henry 

said the BOC would be waiting for an invite to meeting with the City of Monticello and GDOT 

once the city gets it scheduled. 

 

Item 10: ACCG Georgia County Internship Program Grant Agreement:  Chief Accounting 

officer Larissa Ruark asked BOC to approve a summer intern. The money is a grant that the 

county has already been approved to receive.  

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve. Commissioner Gray seconded, motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

Item 11: Human Resources and County Boards Report:  HR Director Sheila Belcher gave 

quarterly update on newly hired and terminated employees for December 2023 through February 

2024. Ms. Belcher gave an update on current number of employees full and part time. She gave 

and update on current job vacancies for the county and upcoming board openings. 

       

Item 12: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed: Short-term rental                                     

Work Session scheduled for Monday March 11, 2023 at 6 p.m.  

County Attorney Items: None 

County Manager Update: Mr. Benton gave updates on building permits, No Thru Truck 
signage, new hire, completion of dugouts, construction of several county roads, and employee 

retirement plan. 

Executive Session: None 

Adjourn:  Commissioner Jones motioned to adjourn at 7:48 p.m. Commissioner 

Gray seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  

___________________________                                                  __________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman                                                                  Sheila Belcher, Clerk                

 

 

 

   



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Work Session Minutes: February 26, 2024  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

March 13, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry -Chairman, Steven Ledford -Vice Chairman; Don Jernigan, Sheila Jones, 

and Asher Gray. 

Staff Present:  Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, County Clerk, Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting 

Officer, Doug Attaway, P &Z Director 

Work Session: 

1. Conservation Subdivisions in AG Zoning: 

Doug Attaway explained that AG zoning will be 5-acre subdivisions. For five-acre conventional subdivisions 

in agriculture the developers will have to pave the any dirt road that touches the subdivision. Mr. Attaway will 

take this information back to the P&Z board.   

 

 

2. Short Term Rentals Ordinance Discussion: 

The Board discussed short-term rentals. They went through the existing ordinance for Putnam county in order 

to draft a short-term rental ordinance for Jasper County. Some of the main points that the board discussed 

were: 

• The cost for annual license 

• The number of people that are allowed in rentals includes persons of all ages 

• After 3 strikes there will be no start over and the owner will lose their short-term rental license 

• A schedule of fines and discipline for violations 

 

 

The Work Session was adjourned at 8:09 p.m.  

 

_________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sheila Belcher, Clerk 



 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date: April 1, 2024 

 

Subject:  Approval of Check Register 

 

 

Summary: 

 

A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 

process the checks. 

 

Background: 

 

Cost:  $0 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve processing of check #’s 70574-70784 

  



 

Business Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  BOC 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Appointment to Development Authority of Jasper County Board 

   

 

 

Summary:  

The Development Authority of Jasper County (DAJC) has three (3) terms that will expire in May.  

Jasper County BOC Staff advertised for interested parties to serve on the DAJC Board. 

 

The following have submitted applications for appointment: 

 

Roy Kelly 

Michelle Coward 

Steve Jordan 

 

Background:  

The Development Authority of Jasper County has a seven member board appointed by the Jasper County BOC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

  















Business Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Appointment to Planning and Zoning Appeals Board 

   

 

 

Summary:  

Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals has two (2) expired terms, July 1, 2023 & March 1, 2024. We have 

received two applications for appointment: 

 

• Cyndi Johns 

• Jennifer Allen 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

The Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals appointees serve  3-year terms.  

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

 

 

  











Business Item 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Recreation Board 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Appointment to Recreation Board  

 

 

Summary: Jasper County Recreation Board has a vacancy that need to be filled. The vacancy is open because 

of a resignation. The term will expire on October 31, 2025.  The open position has been advertised. 

 

The following people have expressed interest in serving on the Board: 

 

• Rachelle Stanionis 

• Ashley Henderson 

• Melissa Strozier 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

 

  

















Business Item 4: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Public Facilities Authority 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Appointment to Public Facilities Authority Board 

   

 

 

Summary:  

Jasper County’s Public Facilities Authority was established by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

and approved by an act by the Georgia General Assembly. The Public Facilities Authority is comprised of 

five (5) members who shall be residents of Jasper County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 

Commissioner of Jasper County. The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of 

one (1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors have been selected and appointed. 

 

The Board of Commissioners staff advertised for applicants for the Public Facilities Authority Board. The 

Board needs to appoint a Commissioner Representative and 3 citizens.  

 

 

 

The following citizens have submitted applications to serve on the Jasper County Public Facilities Board: 

 

• Howard Fore 

 

 

Background:  

The Jasper County Public Facilities Authority was created for the purpose of promoting the public good and 

wellbeing of the citizens of Jasper County. The Authority has the ability to enable financing to provide long term 

capital projects including facilities, equipment and services within Jasper County. 

 

 

 

 

Cost:  None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

  







Business Item 5: 

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Public Works 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Capital Expenditure Request – RA-400 Truck Mounted Road Pothole Patcher  

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Request for capital expenditure of a RA-400 truck mounted road pothole patcher 

 

Justification and machine & chassis specifications attached 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

Rosco RA-400 Road Pothole Patcher    $175,098.60 

Peterbilt Chassis      $129,500.00 

Total Cost       $304,598.60   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

$304,598.60 

 

Potential Funding Sources 

SPLOST 

ARPA 

General Fund Balance 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  



















 

Business Item 6: 

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Senior Center 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Request for Senior Center Improvements – Parking Lot Surface, Stormwater Drainage   

 and Back Lot Grade 

 

Summary:  

 

Discussion Requested. 

 

 

Background:  

 

The Jasper County Senior Center has a constant problem with water drainage and intermittent flooding—during 

heavy rains and storms. This reoccurring issue, makes it very difficult for the seniors to maneuver in/out of the 

building, increases the potential risk for future mold and structural damage, that may weaken the building’s 

infrastructural integrity. 

 

Moreover, the current rock/gravel parking lot, is not only a safety hazard for our seniors but presents a 

liability risk for anyone visiting the center as well. In lieu of these concerns, the Jasper County BOC instructed 

Mrs. Brenda Jacobs to collaborate with Jordan Engineering—the county’s engineer, to discuss the following:  

 

• The pavement of the center’s parking lot, to address the drainage problems, and landscaping issues in 

and around the center.  

• The replacement of senior center’s sign. The implementation of this project would be an aesthetical and 

economical benefit to the synergy of Jasper County.   

 

Finally, Jordan Engineering met with Mrs. Brenda Jacobs, in order to create three blueprint designs and plans, 

to submit to the BOC for discussion, approval and potential bids. Since the time of that meeting, this endeavor 

has been put on a temporary hold.  

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  



 

Business Item 7: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Roads and Bridges 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: 2024 LMIG - Wild Rd Bids Received 

 

 

Summary:  

 

2024 LMIG Project 

Resurface Wild Rd from SR 11 to Liberty Church Rd 

2.20 miles 

FDR 

 

Bids Received 

Blount Construction    $842,439.81 

C.W. Matthews Contracting   $987,990.54 

Pittman Construction    $823,775.70 

ShepCo Paving    $946,265.83 

 

County Engineer recommends the bid from Pittman Construction. 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

FY 2024 GDOT LMIG Grant Amount  $ 646,927 

30% County Match     $ 194,078 

Total Minimum Project    $ 841,005 

 

GDOT LMIG program requires a 30% county match. 

County Match to be funded by SPLOST. 

 

 

Cost:   

 

Determined by bid award 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Motion to award the 2024 LMIG Wild Rd Project to Pittman Construction in the amount of $823,775.70 

  



Jordan Engineering, Inc.                  144 N. Warren Street, Monticello, Georgia 31064                           (706) 468-8999 

 
 
 
Mr. Mike Benton, County Manager                                                      March 26, 2024 
Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
126 W. Greene Street 
Monticello, Georgia 31064 
 
Re: Contractor recommendation for Jasper Co 2024 LMIG (Wild Rd) 
 
Dear Mr. Benton: 
I have reviewed four bids received for the Jasper County 2024 LMIG grant Wild Road paving project.  The lowest 
bid for the work was submitted by Pittman Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $823,775.70 (the next 
lowest bid was received from Blount Construction Company in the amount of $842,439.81).  I checked the bid 
tabulation math and found no errors on the bid form and the bid was appropriately signed, bonded, and notarized. 
 
Pittman Construction has submitted bids for multiple Jasper County projects in recent years and most recently was 
contracted by Jasper County to perform the 2023 LMIG paving project for Jackson Lake Road.  Pittman 
Construction is a well-known large paving contractor headquartered in Conyers, Georgia and has been in business 
for over a hundred years.  They employ about 250 people, they are an approved Georgia DOT and federal DOT 
contractor, and based on my information they have a good reputation with other local governments in performing 
projects similar to this one. 
 
Based on their status as low bidder and the other information I have summarized above, I recommend that the 
Jasper County Commission contract with Pittman Construction Company to complete the 2024 LMIG grant Wild 
Road paving project for a total contract amount of $823,775.70. 
 
Sincerely, 
Jordan Engineering, Inc. 

  
Robert O. Jordan, PE RLS 





 

Business Item 8: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Recreation 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Sands Drive Park Pavilion Project Bids Received 

   

Summary:  

 

Sands Dr Park Pavilion Shelter Top 

 

30’ Wide x 38’ Long Wood Framed Pavilion on an existing pad at Sands Dr Park 

 

 

Sands Drive Park Pavilion Bids Received 

Crown Service Contractors    $57,840.00 

KorKat      $95,308.70 

Piedmont Forestry Mulching    $39,760.00 

Pure Construction     $28,727.00 

The Trezz Group     $22,500.00 

The Yanover Company    $58,500.00 

 

 

Background:  

 

At the August 1, 2022 BOC Meeting, the BOC approved constructing a Pavilion Shelter Top at Sands Dr Park 

contingent upon an approved intergovernmental agreement with the Jasper County BOC and the Monticello 

City Council. 

 

The intergovernmental agreement approved by the Jasper County BOC has been approved and signed by the 

Monticello City Council. 

 

Original Cost Estimates for the Project 

Pavilion Shelter Top     $19,000 

Six Commercial Picnic Tables   $   8820 

Three Commercial Park Benches   $   3171 

Total       $30,991 

 

Cost:  

Determined by bid award 

Funding Source – Impact Fees 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Motion to award the Sands Dr Park Pavilion bid to The Trezz Group in the amount of $22,500.00 as presented. 

  

















Public Facility Library Parks Fire E911 Admin Roads &Bridges Animal Control Total
Allocation Percentage 2% 20% 19% 18% 2% 22% 17% 100%
Service Area Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide Countywide

Impact Fee Balance:
6/30/2023 4,292.71         209,979.09     32,217.49       143,731.41     15,310.04       42,449.31       69,512.89       517,492.94     

Impact Fees Collected:
7/1/2023 thru 6/30/2024 2,506.14         25,055.03       23,802.87       22,550.71       2,496.91         27,561.17       21,297.64       125,270.47     

Accrued Interest 216.24             2,162.41         2,054.29         1,946.17         216.24             2,378.65         1,838.05         10,812.05       
Subtotal: Fee Accounts 7,015.09         237,196.53     58,074.65       168,228.29     18,023.19       72,389.13       92,648.58       653,575.46     

Impact Fees Refunds
Expenditures  -                     (96.00)             -                   -                   (96.00)             
Impact Fee Balance:

6/30/2024 7,015.09         237,196.53     58,074.65       168,228.29     17,927.19       72,389.13       92,648.58       653,479.46     

Reconciled to Bank Balance @ 2.29.24

Less: Actual Expenditures
8 ft Grader Box Blade Dirt Dog - Public Works (2,850.00)        (2,850.00)        

2023 Ford F150 Supercab w/ 8 ft bed - Animal Control (49,220.00)      (49,220.00)      
Ballfield Lights - Recreation (4,994.31)        (4,994.31)        

2023 F150 Truck - Public Works (36,675.00)      (36,675.00)      
FY23 Impact Fees Fund Library (4,292.71)        (4,292.71)        

8 New Dugouts - Recreation (60,597.50)      (60,597.50)      
Stryker - Fire Rescue (2,280.00)        (2,280.00)        

Recorder - 911 (24,130.00)      (24,130.00)      
Emergency Medical Dispatch and Security/Access System (24,731.09)      (24,731.09)      

Edmunds Gov Tech Finance Super Suite - Finance (15,310.00)      (15,310.00)      

Less: Committed Expenditures FY 23
Sprinkler System Repair and Upgrade - Recreation (14,000.00)      (14,000.00)      

8 New Dugouts - Recreation (9,402.50)        (9,402.50)        
Pavilion Shelter Top - Sands Dr Park (19,000.00)      (19,000.00)      

Three Commercial Park Benches - Sands Dr Park (3,171.00)        (3,171.00)        
Six Commercial Picnic Tables - Sands Dr Park (8,820.00)        (8,820.00)        

Less: Committed Expenditures FY 24
Aluminum Dog Box - Animal Control (1,155.00)        (1,155.00)        

Emergency Medical Dispatch and Security/Access System (31,000.00)      (31,000.00)      
Remaining Available 11.30.23 2,722.38         117,211.22     55,794.65       88,367.20       2,617.19         32,864.13       42,273.58       341,850.35     

Jasper County BOC
Impact Fee Fund

Annual Impact Fee Financial Report
Fiscal Year 2024



 

Business Item 9: 

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Roads and Bridges 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: GDOT Local Road Assistance Administration Funds 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

 

Discussion regarding the Local Road Assistance funds. 

 

Applications for the LRA fund is due to GDOT by June 15, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

The State FY 2024 Amended Budget added Local Road Assistance Administration funds for counties to use for 

road projects. Eligible activities and projects for LRA funds will be the same as for the LMIG program. The 

LRA fund does not require a county match. 

 

Jasper County’s LRA allocation for FY 2024 is $801,261.06. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

The LRA fund does not require a county match. 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Board Discretion 

  





Business Item 10: 

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Support Letter for Northeast Georgia Regional Commission’s Request for FY 2025   

 Congressional Funding 

   

 

 

Summary:  

The NEGRC is applying for FY25 appropriations funding through Senator Warnock, Senator Ossoff, and 

Representative Collins offices. These funding requests will seek financial support for improvements to NEGRC 

headquarters’ building. These improvements are based on preliminary-conceptual designs prepared by the 

architectural firm of Goodwin, Mills, Cawood as engaged by the NEGRC’s Council. 

 

NEGRC has provided a template for the support letter.  Benefits of the NEGRC and projects for Jasper County 

will need to be added to the template.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

  



[On Letterhead] 

 

[Date] 

 

The Honorable Mike Collins 

1223 Longworth House Office Building 

Washington, DC  20515 

 

Dear Representative Collins, 

 

I am writing to provide a letter of support for the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission’s (NEGRC) 
request for potential funding through the FY25 Appropriations and a “Community Project Funding 
Request.” 
 
The NEGRC seeks financial support to construct a new addition to the NEGRC’s regional headquarters’ 
building, originally constructed in 1972. The NEGRC’s headquarters, and a new addition, would improve 
its service delivery to our growing twelve-county region.  The NEGRC, more specifically, provides three 
critical services for our county and the region including:  Aging Services, Workforce Development, and 
Planning & Economic Development Services.  
 
By funding these building improvements, the NEGRC will be positioned to enhance their services and 
serve the growing population of the twelve-county region well into the future.   
 
[In your own words, describe the benefits of the NEGRC and project to your county]. 
 
I greatly appreciate your attention in this request and we will look forward to a favorable review. 
 
 
 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 [Name] 
 [Title] 
 
 
 

 



 

Business Item 11: 

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Landfill  

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Free C&D Material Tipping for Jasper County Residents - Discussion 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

Discussion requested for free C&D material tipping for Jasper County residents. 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

Jasper County operates a Construction and Demolition landfill. 

 

EPD has started strictly enforcing rules regarding C&D type landfills. 

 

Waste that is allowed in C&D landfills is waste generated from construction, renovation, repair and demolition 

of building structures. All other general waste is not allowed to be placed in a C&D landfill. 

 

Waste that is brought to the C&D landfill that is not C&D waste is placed in roll off containers that will be 

transported to a general garbage landfill. 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  



 

 

Business Item 12: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   April 1, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

 

Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

 


